A brief history of healthcare provision in London
MILITARY HOSPITALS
AUXILIARY HOSPITALS DURING WW1

As wounded servicemen began to arrive back in England in great numbers, the British Red Cross and other organisations established auxiliary hospitals to ease the pressure on the large military hospitals.   Thanks to the improved reorganisation of the Army Medical Service by Sir Alfred Keogh (1857-1936), who had been its Director General  from 1905 to 1910, the country was in a better position to establish these.  Keogh had also been responsible for establishing the Territorial Force (TF) in 1911.  He was reappointed as Director General of the Army Medical Service at the outbreak of WW1.

Keogh's far-sighted policy in ear-marking public buildings for use as hospitals in times of war proved crucial.  Twenty-five large buildings had been chosen throughout the United Kingdom, four of which were in London.  Although these auxiliary general hospitals were primarily intended to meet the needs of the Territorial Force, they were also ready to receive patients from the regular British Army.  Each was intended to accommodate 520 patients.  The auxiliary hospitals were attached to central military hospitals and the patients remained under military control.  

The auxiliary hospitals included a first tier of large auxiliary general hospitals and a wider tier of smaller premises volunteered for war service.  Over 5000 buildings in England were offered free of charge to the War Office. They varied greatly in size: town halls, recreation halls, elementary schools, infirmaries, portions of general hospitals, large and small private houses in London and elsewhere, even cottages, garages and stables.  Not all were suitable for hospital purposes.  Auxiliary hospitals were classified as Class A (those who took cot cases, i.e. the bedridden, from military hospitals) and Class B (for convalescent and ambulant patients).  Specialised units were also set up for shell-shocked and neurasthenic patients. Some 352 auxiliary military hospitals were established in the London district.  

The staff of an auxiliary hospital included a commandant (who was in charge of the hospital, but not the medical and nursing services), a quartermaster, a matron and members of the local Voluntary Aid Detachment who had been trained in first aid and home nursing.  Medical care was provided voluntarily as needed by the local doctors.  Discipline was less strict in the smaller hospitals than in a military hospital and the surroundings more homely. 

The rates paid to auxiliary hospitals for military patients were not the same.  In January 1915 the standard maximum rate for the great majority was 3 shillings (15p) a day per occupied bed, but no payment was given for unoccupied beds.  By 1918 this had risen to 3s 3d (16p) a day, with 6d (2.5p) paid per unoccupied bed.  However, the increase was quite inadequate in view of the inflated cost of food, and auxiliary hospitals had to rely on voluntary public donations.  Some private auxiliary hospitals did not receive such capitation grants.

In April 1915 the War Office announced that it was not proposed to accept any further offers of private houses for auxiliary hospitals or convalescent homes, as a sufficient number of large military hospitals had been established.

LOST HOSPITALS OF LONDON 

Charlton House 
Auxiliary Hospital
Charlton Road, Old Charlton, SE7 8RE

Medical dates:

1918 - 1919
Medical character:
Convalescent (military)

In October 1918 Sir Spencer and Lady Maryon-Wilson gave free use of part of Charlton House to the British Red Cross Society as an auxiliary military hospital.

The Charlton House Auxiliary Hospital opened on 14th October, less than a month before the signing of the Armistice.  Designated as a Class A hospital, it was affiliated to the Brook War Hospital.  It had been intended to have 70 beds but initially only 50 were equipped (it later had 72 beds).  On the first day of its opening 35 servicemen were admitted, including 12 stretcher cases.

The paid staff consisted of a Sister-in-charge, a Day Sister and a Night Sister, and 1 full-time and 55 part-time members of Voluntary Aid Detachments from the Greenwich and Woolwich Division, who were unpaid volunteers.

It was purported that the house had a ghost and one room was left empty as the nurses refused point-blank to enter it.

The Hospital closed on 30th April 1919.  During its operational lifetime, some 168 patients had been admitted.

On closure the beds and bedding, which had been on loan from the Army Ordnance Department, were returned there.  Other redundant hospital equipment was sent to the Southwood Red Cross Hospital in Eltham, the Oakhurst Red Cross Hospital in Erith, the Seamen's Hospital and the Miller Hospital in Greenwich, St John's Hospital in Lewisham, and the Blackheath and Charlton Cottage Hospital and Woolwich, Plumstead and District  Hospital in Woolwich.  The remaining household articles were sold and the money used to restore Charlton House to its original state.

Present status (July 2010)

Charlton House and its grounds were sold to Greenwich Borough Council in 1925.

The Grade I listed Jacobean manor house is now a licensed venue for civil partnership or wedding ceremonies, and can also be hired for other functions.  

The grounds are a public park.

While most of the house is not open to the general public, a cafe for visitors to the park is housed in the central foyer of the building.

